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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: All right, let's

          3  get this rolling.  Don't adjust your TV's at home.

          4  I am not Jessica Lappin. She is much more attractive

          5  than I am.  But, as you know, she gave birth to a

          6  wonderful, beautiful baby.  Yes.  His name is Lucas.

          7  Don't applaud me, I did nothing.  I have to go

          8  inside so I'm going to open this meeting up and I'm

          9  going to turn it over to the trusted leadership of

         10  my Majority Leader, Leroy Comrie, from Queens.  But

         11  first before I do that I'm going to pass out my bat

         12  bill out of this Committee and cause a

         13  Constitutional crisis.  May I?  Thank you.

         14                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Surprise,

         15  surprise.  We're in trouble now. Okay.

         16            This is the Subcommittee on Landmarks,

         17  Public Siting, and Maritime Uses.  I want to

         18  introduce the Council Members that are present.  To

         19  my far left, always, Council Member Charles Barron

         20  from Brooklyn, Council Member Miguel Martinez from

         21  Manhattan, Council Member John Liu from Queens,

         22  Council Member Rosie Mendez from Manhattan, Council

         23  Member Annabel Palma from the Bronx, and Council

         24  Member Maria del Carmen Arroyo from the Bronx, and

         25  we've been joined by Council Member Dennis
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          2  Gallagher.

          3                 The first matter that we will hear

          4  today is Preconsidered L.U. 20075013 SCQ, Queens

          5  Community Board 9, the Hebrew Academy of West

          6  Queens.  So if the gentlemen from SCA can come

          7  forward to the microphone.

          8                 I know we want to hear from Council

          9  Member Gallagher, who would like to make a statement

         10  since this location is within his Council District.

         11  Council Member Gallagher.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GALLAGHER:  Thank you

         13  Mr. Chairman. I just wanted to go on record as being

         14  fully in support of this school within my District

         15  in Richmond Hill, and thank the Committee for

         16  allowing me to say a few words.  I have to go back

         17  into Finance now, but appreciate it very much.

         18  Thank you Mr. Chairman.

         19                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  You would

         20  recommend a "yes" vote.

         21                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Mr. Chair,

         22  only if he stays for the duration of the hearing, if

         23  not --

         24                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  All

         25  right.  Well we can work on that with him. Council
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          2  Member Gallagher has another meeting commitment that

          3  he has to be at, but he's clearly indicated a "yes"

          4  vote on this particular matter.  So with that we'll

          5  turn it over to the folks representing SCA, and we

          6  can hear from them at this moment.  Good morning.

          7                 MR. SHAW:  Good morning.

          8                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  I forgot

          9  to gavel in since I slipped in here.  Okay.  Thank

         10  you.  Continue.  Sorry.

         11                 MR. SHAW:  Thank you.  Good morning

         12  Council Member Comrie.  Good morning Council

         13  Members.  My name is Gregory Shaw. I'm the principle

         14  attorney for real estate for the New York City

         15  School Construction Authority.  To my immediate

         16  right is Michele Lloyd Bey.  She is Community

         17  Superintendent for District 27, and she's available

         18  to answer any questions that you have regarding the

         19  site.

         20                 I'd like to have a few opening

         21  remarks.  The New York City School Construction

         22  Authority has undertaken the site selection process

         23  for the proposed 380- seat early childhood center

         24  known as P.S. 273- Q that will be located on tax

         25  block 9288, lots 101 and 106 on the southeast corner
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          2  of 102nd Street and 88th Avenue in the Richmond

          3  Hills section of Queens.  The proposed school site

          4  is also located in Community School District No. 27

          5  and Queens Community Board No. 9.

          6                 The proposed site contains a total of

          7  approximately 12,500 square feet of lot area.  The

          8  site is an assemblage of two privately- owned lots.

          9  Lot 101 contains a vacant three- story building most

         10  recently used as the Hebrew Academy of West Queens.

         11  Lot 106 contains a vacant two- story residence.  The

         12  SCA has entered into Contracts of Sale to purchase

         13  both premises.  Under the proposed plan, the SCA

         14  will demolish the existing structures and construct

         15  a new 380- seat early childhood center.

         16                 The Notice of Filing for the site

         17  plan was published in the New York Post and City

         18  Record on July 17, 2006.  Queens Community Board No.

         19  9 was also notified of the site plan on that date

         20  and was asked to hold a public hearing on the

         21  proposed site plan.  Community Board No. 9 held its

         22  hearing on the site plan on August 15, 2006, and

         23  subsequently sent written comments in support of the

         24  proposed site plan.  The City Planning Commission

         25  was also notified of the site plan on July 17, 2006,
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          2  and it also recommended in favor of the site.

          3                 The SCA has considered all comments

          4  received on the proposed site plan and affirms the

          5  site plan pursuant to Section 1731 of the Public

          6  Authorities Law, and in accordance with Section 1732

          7  of the Public Authorities Law, the SCA submitted the

          8  proposed site plan to the Mayor and the Council on

          9  March 1, 2007.

         10                 We look forward to your

         11  Subcommittee's favorable consideration of the

         12  proposed site plan.  We are prepared to answer any

         13  questions that you might have.  Thank you.

         14                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Mr. Shaw,

         15  the first thing that jumps out at me as I'm flipping

         16  through the documents is that originally in 2006 it

         17  was signed up to be 460 seats in the original

         18  correspondence that you sent to the Speaker and to

         19  the Borough President.  How did we get down to 380

         20  seats?

         21                 MR. SHAW:  In terms of the design for

         22  the school and the size of the lot was considered to

         23  scale it back.

         24                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  So the

         25  lot size won't contain 460?
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          2                 MR. SHAW:  Yes.  When you're talking

          3  about an early childhood center you can only go up

          4  so many flights when you talk about young children.

          5                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Is there

          6  going to be an elevator built in?  Will they have

          7  handicapped access?

          8                 MR. SHAW:  Oh absolutely. It has to.

          9                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  But will

         10  it have an elevator also?

         11                 MR. SHAW:  Yes. It has to have

         12  elevator use.

         13                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  When

         14  you're talking early childhood, you're talking

         15  prekindergarten straight through?

         16                 MR. SHAW:  Pre- K through I think

         17  it's first grade.

         18                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  First

         19  grade?

         20                 MR. SHAW.  This particular one, yes.

         21                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  It's not

         22  going to be designed for Pre- K?  Okay.

         23                 MR. SHAW:  Yes.  It will be Pre- K

         24  through first grade.

         25                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Oh,
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          2  that's it?

          3                 MR. SHAW:  That's it.  Yes.

          4                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Oh.

          5  Okay.  Not through second grade.  Okay.  Will it

          6  have a special ed component, or a handicap component

          7  for the building to allow kids that are either

          8  handicapped or for special ed?

          9                 MR. SHAW.  Yes.  I believe so, but

         10  I'm going to have Ms. Lloyd Bey answer that

         11  question.

         12                 MS. LLOYD BEY:  Good morning.  I'm

         13  Michele Lloyd Bey, Community Superintendent, --

         14                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Good

         15  morning.

         16                 MS. LLOYD BEY:  -- District 27, good

         17  morning, and Region 5.   The proposal presently is

         18  for Pre- K through grade one.

         19                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Yes.

         20                 MS. LLOYD BEY:  It's a lot

         21  emotionally easier for children to transition them

         22  out of a Pre- K- through- one site than it is a Pre-

         23  K- to- two site for grade two.

         24                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Okay.

         25                 MS. LLOYD BEY:  Yes, we are
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          2  definitely considering a special education component

          3  for children with special needs in the building.

          4  Yes.

          5                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Okay.

          6  Great.  All right.  Any other Members have questions

          7  regarding the property? Council Member Arroyo.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  On the

          9  environmental assessment there's been off- site

         10  contamination or migration occurring to the site.

         11  There's the same old vapor barrier future testing to

         12  make sure that this barrier is intact and continues

         13  to protect the property, and what work is being done

         14  to identify what the off- site source is?

         15                 MR. SHAW:  That's ongoing.  We always

         16  investigate the off- site sources.  With respect to

         17  the vapor barrier, that's always been one of the

         18  things that we require in terms of our construction

         19  to assure that there's no contaminants that can flow

         20  up from underground into the school building.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  Well that

         22  much I learned during the Mott Haven Campus

         23  discussions.  My question is, how do we ensure that

         24  that barrier remains intact and continues to protect

         25  the property the school is going to be on?
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          2                 MR. SHAW:  Well it's really, when you

          3  put a vapor barrier in between the slab there's

          4  really, I don't know what more you can do in terms

          5  of, you're saying ensure -- you can do air

          6  monitoring to make sure.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  Is there a

          8  plan to monitor the environment of the school in the

          9  future to ensure that what mitigation you're doing

         10  continues to protect the property?

         11                 MR. SHAW:  I can't speak to that

         12  right now, but I can check for you and get back to

         13  you Council Member.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  Are we voting

         15  on this item today?

         16                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Yes.

         17  There is a soil problem in that site?

         18                 MR. SHAW:  There is, off- site, is

         19  mostly the issue. It is not really with the site

         20  itself.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  There is an

         22  issue with soil also.

         23                 MR. SHAW:  The soil will be

         24  excavated.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  That one I'm
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          2  not so concerned about.  I'm concerned about the

          3  migration that's coming onto the site and this is

          4  stuff that, this school will be there for how many

          5  years, and how do we ensure that the protection

          6  barrier that has been installed continues to protect

          7  the property from the migration that's occurring.

          8                 MR. SHAW:  Generally speaking, in all

          9  our schools we rotate and we do do air monitoring on

         10  a periodic basis on any school that we build.

         11                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  So

         12  there's no specific migration --

         13                 MR. SHAW:  Once the measures that we

         14  talked about in terms of assuring that there is no

         15  penetration, once the school is constructed, and

         16  then we do an air monitoring test after the school

         17  is fully constructed to assure that the measures

         18  that have been put in place are effective and are

         19  working.  At that particular point there should be

         20  no difficulty because you have a fully- enclosed

         21  school with a vapor barrier and you've excavated all

         22  the soil.

         23                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: -- Where

         24  is the migration?

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: Well, let me
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          2  say --

          3                 MR. SHAW:  I might add --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: -- In the Mott

          5  Haven Campus situation, the off- site contamination

          6  was being investigated by the State.

          7                 MR. SHAW:  Right.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  Is that

          9  happening in this case?  And is there a commitment

         10  from the State to identify the source and deal with

         11  it, which is the case in the Mott Haven?

         12                 MR. SHAW:  The Mott Haven situation

         13  had a great deal more contaminates.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  Contamination

         15  is contamination, we're not going to split hairs

         16  about the amounts. I'm not.  The questions is, is

         17  there a similar commitment from the State to

         18  identify the contaminated, the source of this

         19  contamination, and is it going to be dealt with as

         20  it's intended in the Mott Haven Campus project?

         21                 MR. SHAW:  I can't speak to that.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  Okay.  Thank

         23  you Mr. Chair.

         24                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  So was

         25  there a BIS done for this site?   Was there an ES
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          2  done for this site?

          3                 MR. SHAW:  No there was none.

          4                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Was there

          5  a test to see how far down this hits before you hit

          6  the aquifer as far as soil boring?  Because Queens

          7  sits on an aquifer, and was there an opportunity to

          8  test how far down before you hit water at this

          9  particular location?  I didn't see anything in here

         10  about it.

         11                 MR. SHAW:  It wasn't mentioned

         12  because I don't believe that the groundwater samples

         13  that were analyzed and given how far down the

         14  groundwater is as opposed to where we're excavating,

         15  there's a great deal of distance between the two.

         16                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Okay.  My

         17  concern, there was another site that was built in

         18  Richmond Hills less than a quarter mile away from

         19  this site that is now having a problem with

         20  contamination.  So, I don't understand, number one

         21  why there wasn't a complete environmental

         22  assessment.

         23                 MR. SHAW:  Well, there was a complete

         24  environmental assessment done, and that's why the

         25  measures that we put in place were based on that
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          2  assessment.

          3                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Okay.

          4  I'm looking at the phase one and the phase two here.

          5    So, you're saying in there that the  --

          6                 MR. SHAW:  If you look on page 8- 2.

          7                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  I'm

          8  looking at page S- 6.

          9                 MR. SHAW:  Go back to the very end.

         10                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  I'm

         11  looking at page S- 6, Soil and Groundwater

         12  Conditions, and you're talking about the site

         13  recognizing environmental conditions regarding

         14  related to the historic presence of a nearby razor

         15  blade factory and upgrade off site  --

         16                 MR. SHAW:  Right.

         17                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  --  Dry

         18  cleaners, gas stations, auto repair shops and the

         19  presence of two fill ports.  Is that a fill port for

         20  oil?  Yes.  Former oil heating, fuel heating system.

         21    You're saying that there was triglyceride?

         22                 MR. SHAW:  The phase two EIS

         23  consisted of advancement of five soil borings and

         24  collection of eight soil samples.

         25                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Okay.
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          2                 MR. SHAW:  Three groundwater, two

          3  sub- slab soil vapor, and one ambient samples for

          4  laboratory analysis.  Soil samples collected were

          5  analyzed by target compound lists, volatile organic

          6  compounds, TCL semi- volatile, there are a number of

          7  items that were in there.  The results of the phase

          8  two ESI indicate that the materials surrounding the

          9  Hebrew Academy Building consists of a fill to the

         10  depth of approximately 16 feet below grade,

         11  consisting of a fine medium sand with trace fine

         12  gravel and trace concrete bits.  Below the field

         13  layer native outwash materials were observed.  The

         14  maximum vertical depth of the phase two

         15  investigation was 40 feet, four feet below grade.

         16  Groundwater was accounted at a depth of

         17  approximately 35 feet below grade and is expected to

         18  flow in a southwest direction.

         19                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Okay.

         20                 MR. SHAW:  The laboratory results of

         21  the phase two indicates slightly elevated

         22  concentrations of arsenic, chromium, lead, silver,

         23  DDT, DDE, which were detected in exterior soil

         24  sample, as compared to New York State Department of

         25  Environmental Conservation Technical Administrative
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          2  Guidance soil clean up objectives.  These compounds

          3  were commonly found in urban field material.  No

          4  elevated concentrations of DOCs or SODCOs, other

          5  materials, other pesticides and PCBs were detected

          6  in collected soil and groundwater samples.

          7                 So, we are not talking about elevated

          8  compounds. This is not a bad site.  You cannot

          9  compare this site with Mott Haven.  You can't. You

         10  can't.

         11                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Okay.

         12  How far down are you going to go into the ground?

         13  Are you building a basement at that site?

         14                 MR. SHAW:  Yes.

         15                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Do you

         16  know how many feet you're going down?  Because you

         17  are saying that groundwater was detected at 35 feet

         18  below grade, and that's, groundwater levels are high

         19  right now.  Do you know how many feet below grade

         20  you are going in construction of that building?

         21                 MR. SHAW:  I don't have that

         22  information for you right now.  I'll have to look.

         23                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Okay.

         24  But you went over these details with Council Member

         25  Gallagher and the Community Board?
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          2                 MR. SHAW:  Absolutely.  The Community

          3  Board voted unanimous in favor of the site.  You

          4  must understand that this is an existing school

          5  building.

          6                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Yes.  I

          7  understand that, but is it actually functioning as

          8  school right now?

          9                 MR. SHAW:  No. Right now it is

         10  vacant.

         11                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Okay.

         12                 MR. SHAW:  It was offered for sale

         13  and that's when we purchased it.

         14                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  How long

         15  has it been vacant?  Do you know?

         16                 MR. SHAW:  Approximately, it's been

         17  over a year.

         18                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Okay.

         19  You'll let the Committee know what the phase two

         20  detail plan is for mitigation so that you can get

         21  back to us about that specifically.

         22                 MR. SHAW:  I'll get back to you this

         23  afternoon.

         24                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Okay.

         25  All right.  Any other questions?  Council Member

                                                            19

          1  LANDMARKS, PUBLIC SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  Arroyo?  Okay.

          3                 Hearing all the questions and knowing

          4  that the Council Member, local Council Member and

          5  the Community Board looked at this, I would hope

          6  that all of the proper considerations were

          7  illuminated with them.  He did say that he was

          8  strongly in favor of moving forward with it, so I

          9  would recommend a "yes" vote and recommend also that

         10  we get back to Council Member Gallagher, double

         11  check with him about the environmental issues and

         12  report back to the Committee, but I recommend a

         13   "yes" vote on the site at this time.

         14                 Any other questions, comments?  Can

         15  we call the roll on this particular item?  Are there

         16  two other items?  Do you want to do that first?  All

         17  right.  Fine.  Okay.

         18                 So, thank you Mr. Shaw, and

         19  Superintendent Michele Lloyd Bey.

         20                 We'll close the hearing on this

         21  particular item and then we'll go to Land Use Item

         22  381, New Brighton Village Hall, and Land Use Item

         23  382, both for Landmarks.  The first one, New

         24  Brighton Village Hall is in Staten Island Community

         25  Board 1, the second item is in Brooklyn Community
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          2  Board 2, the James W. And Lucy S. Elwell House.

          3                 Is Diane Jackier here.  Hiding in the

          4  back.  Come forward and give us a briefing on both

          5  items. Thank you.

          6                 MS. JACKIER:  Good morning Council

          7  Members.  My name is Diane Jackier, Director of

          8  External Affairs for the Landmarks Preservation

          9  Commission.  I am here today to testify on the

         10  Commissions designation of the James and Lucy Elwell

         11  house located at 70 Lefferts Place in Brooklyn.

         12                 On December 12, 2006, the Landmarks

         13  Commission held a public hearing on the proposed

         14  designation.  Eleven people spoke in favor,

         15  including representatives of Council Members Albert

         16  Vann and Letitia James, who was actually there in

         17  person, Father Divine's International Peace Mission

         18  Movement, the Historic District's Council, the

         19  Lefferts Place Civic Association, the Prospect

         20  Heights Action Coalition, the Society for the

         21  Architecture of the City, and the Society for

         22  Clinton Hill.  The owner's representative spoke in

         23  opposition to the designation.  After listening to

         24  the testimony, the owner himself stated that,

         25   "although he did not understand why the building
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          2  was significant, he would do his best to work with

          3  the community who were so obviously supportive of

          4  its preservation."  The Commission also received

          5  letters from Brooklyn Borough President Marty

          6  Markowitz and Brooklyn Community Board 2 in support

          7  of designation.

          8                 In addition, the Commission received

          9  a petition with 101 signatures from the Society for

         10  Clinton Hill and another with 60 signatures from the

         11  Lefferts Place Civic Association, both in support of

         12  designation.  The Commission designated the building

         13  on December 12, 2006.

         14                 Constructed circa 1854 for the

         15  prominent merchant, James W. Elwell, 70 Lefferts

         16  Place is a rare surviving, free standing house in

         17  Clinton Hill South.  This neighborhood had a number

         18  of similar residences in the mid- to- late- 19th

         19  century when new modes of transportation made

         20  Brooklyn a viable commuter suburb of Manhattan.

         21                 The majority of these single- family

         22  residences were demolished or severely altered

         23  during the proliferation of development that

         24  occurred in the area of Brooklyn beginning in the

         25  latter part of the 19th century.
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          2                 James W. Elwell, who is described as

          3  one of the oldest and most highly esteemed

          4  businessmen in Manhattan, established a freight and

          5  shipping commission firm.  Late in life Elwell was

          6  known for his philanthropic work, spending more than

          7  $3 million in charitable purposes over the course of

          8  his lifetime.

          9                 In 1939, the house was sold to

         10  followers of Father Divine, the charismatic African

         11  American Evangelical leader of the International

         12  Peace Mission Movement, which first became known in

         13  Brooklyn in about 1919.  Father Divine's appeal

         14  during the Great Depression can be attributed in

         15  part to his teachings of racial equality, peace, and

         16  non- violence in the midst of a difficult era. His

         17  legendary talent for public speaking drew large

         18  audiences and membership of the Movement grew from

         19  about 30 to 40 people in 1924 to tens of thousands

         20  in the late 1930s.  Because of this growing

         21  membership, multiple properties were needed to

         22  accommodate his believers.  Number 70 Lefferts Place

         23  was one of nearly 100 such properties in the

         24  northeast and was called "Father Divine's Peace

         25  Mission Movement Extension."  The basement of 70
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          2  Lefferts Place has a public dining hall, the first

          3  floor has the Holy Communion banquet hall, and the

          4  second and attic floors served as living quarters

          5  for Father Divine's followers.  The house, in the

          6  words of one of the followers who had lived there,

          7  was "dedicated to the caring of people."

          8                 With its design likely derived from

          9  architectural pattern books, 70 Lefferts Place

         10  maintains many of its original Italianate

         11  characteristics, such as its cubical massing with

         12  projecting front bay, flat roof with wide projecting

         13  eaves, and finally carved wood brackets, pronounced

         14  front pediment, and rooftop cupola.  It remains a

         15  rare and excellent representative of a type and

         16  style that has all but vanished from Clinton Hill

         17  South and is increasingly rare in Brooklyn as a

         18  whole.

         19                 The Commission urges you to affirm

         20  the designation of the Elwell House.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  Mr. Chairman.

         22                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  She has

         23  one more testimony on the second property, and then

         24  I know you have to leave so you can vote, but if she

         25  can just read the testimony into the record, we'll
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          2  do the vote quickly.  Go ahead.

          3                 MS. JACKIER:  I'm also here to

          4  testify in the Commission's Action to rescind the

          5  designation of the Landmark site of New Brighton

          6  Village Hall in Staten Island.

          7                 Designed by James Whitford and

          8  constructed circa 1871, New Brighton Village Hall

          9  was a three- story brick building with a mansard

         10  roof.  It was designated an individual landmark on

         11  October 14, 1965.  Originally built as a County Seat

         12  of Government for the Village of New Brighton, it

         13  was last occupied in 1965 when it was used for

         14  medical offices.  In 1969 the building suffered

         15  significant damage due to a fire.  Retrovest

         16  Associates purchased the building in 1985 and the

         17  Landmarks Commission issued a permit in 1987 for the

         18  renovation of the original structure and the

         19  construction of an addition.  This renovation never

         20  occurred.

         21                 After numerous, unsuccessful efforts

         22  to have responsible parties make repairs to the

         23  building, on June 18, 2001, the Landmarks Commission

         24  initiated a lawsuit against Retrovest Associates and

         25  other responsible parties for the failure to
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          2  maintain the building in a condition of good repair

          3  as is required by the Landmarks Law.  While the

          4  lawsuit was pending, several severe winter storms

          5  caused partial collapses of what remained of the

          6  roof.  On December 31, 2003, the Department of

          7  Buildings determined that the building was unsafe,

          8  posed an immediate danger to the public, and ordered

          9  its demolition.  What remained of New Brighton

         10  Village Hall was demolished in February, 2004.

         11                 Even though the building was no

         12  longer on the property, the land underneath was

         13  still designated a landmark site. On December 12,

         14  2006, the Landmarks Commission voted to rescind the

         15  designation of this landmark site because nothing of

         16  architectural or historical significance remains,

         17  and I can talk about the settlement if anyone has

         18  any questions about that.

         19                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  So, just

         20  to sum it up, you're rescinding the designation

         21  because there is no longer a building on the site.

         22                 MS. JACKIER:  Right.  When the

         23  Commission designates a building, we also designate

         24  a related landmark site, so even though the building

         25  was gone, the related landmark site was still
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          2  designated.  So the Commission took this action to

          3  rescind the designation of the landmark site.

          4                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  What do

          5  you mean, "related landmark site?"

          6                 MS. JACKIER:  The land underneath the

          7  building.

          8                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  The land

          9  underneath the building?

         10                 MS. JACKIER:  Yes.

         11                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  So, since

         12  there's nothing there to be worried about then we

         13  don't need to designate land as a landmark.

         14                 MS. JACKIER:  Correct.

         15                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Although

         16  we may get to that in another 20 years when we run

         17  out of property, we might want to designate all our

         18  parks as landmark, but that's not the case today.

         19                 All right.  Has the Committee heard

         20  both testimonies and are we prepared to vote?

         21  Council Member, are we ready to do the roll call on

         22  both properties?  Any questions?

         23                 I'm sorry, we have other people that

         24  want to testify.  So Council Member Liu has another

         25  conflict and needs to leave so can he vote on these
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          2  two items?

          3                 Council Member Liu, your vote.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  Thank you Mr.

          5  Chairman.  Will there be separate votes or one

          6  joined?

          7                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  We're

          8  going to combine all three issues.  The two

          9  Landmarks, 381 and 382 and the Hebrew Academy

         10  School.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  I vote "yes" on

         12  the coupled Motion.

         13                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Thank

         14  you.

         15                 Council Member Martinez, you'd like

         16  to vote at this time?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Thank you

         18  Mr. Chair. Unfortunately I have another Committee

         19  Meeting that I have to be at, but I want to vote

         20   "Aye" on all items.  I just want to highlight that

         21  I've noticed that from the applications that we're

         22  getting from school construction, I just want to, in

         23  addition to the other issues that were raised today,

         24  but I also want to commend them for addressing the

         25  need for early childhood throughout the City.  I
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          2  think that this is a positive way to go in

          3  addressing that issue.  I know that I want to see

          4  some more early childhoods in my District, but I

          5  know it's a Citywide problem, and I just want to

          6  commend them in their building designs and sites

          7  that are being designated that they're including

          8  early childhood centers.

          9                 Thank you Mr. Chair, and I vote "Aye"

         10  on all.  Thank you for allowing me to vote early.

         11                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Thank

         12  you.  Okay.  I see no other members that have to go

         13  right now.  We'll hear from the two witnesses.

         14  Simeon Bankoff from the Historic Districts Council,

         15  oh, it's two separate items, or David Conrad from,

         16  sorry I saw Lefferts Place, I'm thinking Queens,

         17  Lefferts Boulevard, sorry. David Conrad from, he's

         18  from Brooklyn so we'll forgive him from being from

         19  Brooklyn.

         20                 MR. CONRAD:  Good morning.  I'm David

         21  Conrad.  I'm the Secretary and Communications

         22  Officer for the Lefferts Place Civic Association in

         23  Clinton Hill Brooklyn.  I lived on Lefferts Place

         24  for about nine years, and that's a drop in the

         25  bucket compared to some of my neighbors, people like
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          2  Aminisha Black and Raymond Harris, who have lived on

          3  the street, some of them since the 1950s or 1960s.

          4  Of course the Elwell House, No. 70 Lefferts, has

          5  been there a lot longer than that, since before the

          6  Civil War.

          7                 Clinton Hill, along with the rest of

          8  the City, has changed a lot in that time, and a

          9  long- time neighbor once told me it used to be so

         10  bad on street, this is back in the '70s, that when

         11  he came back from Vietnam he thought he was still in

         12  a war.  But now it has become a desirable, friendly

         13  neighborhood where homes go for well over a million

         14  dollars, and that's because it's a beautiful-

         15  looking place with fine, well- built old houses and

         16  big trees.  But it's also because Lefferts Place has

         17  a real community. We can thank people like Ms. Black

         18  and Mr. Harris for that because they stayed here

         19  through the hard times and fixed up their homes and

         20  kept them in good shape and helped make "located in

         21  Clinton Hill" a selling point for realtors instead

         22  of the liability it used to be.

         23                 No. 70 Lefferts survived through hard

         24  times, too. When I moved in across the street it

         25  looked like something out of a horror movie with
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          2  fire damage, broken windows, and peeling paint until

          3  the Maitland family renovated it in 2001 and made it

          4  into what you see today.  This is what No. 70

          5  Lefferts means to me when I see it every day.  It

          6  doesn't just look beautiful, it reminds me that I

          7  live in a neighborhood that's worked hard to bring

          8  itself from sickness to health, from decay to the

          9  kind of urban beauty people come and take pictures

         10  of as an example of the grand old brownstone

         11  Brooklyn.

         12                 Of course when that happens real

         13  estate values go up, and investors and developers

         14  starts noticing the neighborhood, and they see what

         15  people are paying for houses and apartments and

         16  maybe they do the math on a property that's up for

         17  sale and see how they can turn a certain profit if

         18  they can tear the house down on that lot and put up

         19  something a lot bigger.  But maybe they're not

         20  thinking about the reason that everybody now wants

         21  to live on a street that used to be considered

         22   "ghetto", or what the people living on that street

         23  did to make it desirable, profitable property.

         24                 The LPC made the right decision in

         25  designating No. 70 Lefferts for all the reasons
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          2  they've stated, but also because the house reminds

          3  us that this is a community people worked to build

          4  and make something good out of back when realtors

          5  and developers were interested only in Park Slope

          6  and Brooklyn Heights.  Lefferts Place is a healthy

          7  street now and getting more so every day through the

          8  efforts of the homeowners and renters who live

          9  there.  The Elwell House with all its beauty and

         10  history rescued from oblivion by the hands of the

         11  people who lived in it reminds us what's really

         12  important about this City, not that more money

         13  changes hands here than anywhere else, or that we've

         14  got bigger buildings than anywhere else, but that a

         15  City this vast can sustain human- size, living

         16  communities shaped by the people who live in them,

         17  not just by the muscle of the real estate market.

         18                 So I want to thank this Committee for

         19  giving us the chance to be heard today, and I very

         20  much hope you'll affirm the LPC's landmark

         21  designation of No. 70 Lefferts.

         22                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Mr.

         23  Bankoff, good morning.

         24                 MR. BANKOFF:  Good morning Committee

         25  Members.  I'm Simeon Bankoff from the Historic
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          2  Districts Council.  HDC is incredibly pleased to

          3  have the opportunity to speak out on behalf of 70

          4  Lefferts Place being preserved.  The Elwell House

          5  has a rich and interesting history that truly adds

          6  to the greater knowledge of how our City developed

          7  and how previous generations of Brooklynites lived.

          8                 The notion of Clinton Hill as a

          9  commuter suburb within the greater City seems almost

         10  alien to us now.  By all means it remains a

         11  residential neighborhood, which by the very nature

         12  of our City, means that it is a commuter area, but

         13  one built of the more typical attached row houses of

         14  Brooklyn, not this elaborate Italianate villa.  No,

         15  this building harkens back to an earlier antebellum

         16  period, which is a justly ironic description

         17  considering the home's later affiliation with Father

         18  Divine.  No longer a suburb, the Clinton Hill area

         19  is now firmly and fully imbedded in the urban

         20  fabric.  The City has encompassed and absorbed the

         21  village, but this building still exists, and therein

         22  lies part of its power.

         23                 The Elwell House, like all true

         24  landmarks, exists to mark the land, to serve as a

         25  signpost to another era, and a window into another
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          2  time.  This is a house that has born witness to the

          3  changes that swept across Brooklyn, and has survived

          4  all of them, changed perhaps, the porch was

          5  enclosed, the back portion stuccoed, but still

          6  easily recognizable as an artifact from a specific

          7  time which possesses beauty and utility.

          8                 The LPC's designation report on the

          9  building does a terrific job of dealing with both

         10  the architectural and historical significance of the

         11  house.  Of particular interest is the connection

         12  with Father Divine, which went from first a rumor

         13  and an oral folktale of the neighborhood to

         14  researched and confirmed history.  What the report

         15  doesn't talk about though is what David was just

         16  talking about, the most recent, significant

         17  historical event at this house, its regeneration.

         18  After years of neglect private owners took it upon

         19  themselves to restore and rejuvenate this building.

         20  I don't know the Maitlands, so I can't say

         21  personally why they did it precisely, but I'd like

         22  to think they spent the time and money needed to

         23  bring this house back from the edge at least in part

         24  because they understood the importance of their home

         25  to their neighborhood as a beautiful, useful member
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          2  of the community who can tell the new kids on the

          3  block about the old days first hand.  This building

          4  was a real preservation success story.

          5                 Thanks to the swift actions of the

          6  LPC, greatly aided by the additional funding

          7  provided by the City Council last year, this

          8  building is now safe from the demolition that

          9  recently hung over it like a toxic cloud, and that

         10  is the final part of this building's significance.

         11  It's a shining example of what can happen to a

         12  worthy, historic site when the community and

         13  government join forces to save it.  Nothing can

         14  stand in their way, not even a demolition permit.

         15                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Thank

         16  you.  Now we'll hear from Robert Biviano, Architect.

         17                 I'm sorry.  Council Member Barron has

         18  a question.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  I just have a

         20  concern.  I know Aminisha Black very well, and

         21  others.  I don't like how you use the term "ghetto",

         22  like it used to be a "ghetto".  I have problems with

         23  that because there are some areas in our

         24  neighborhood that they still call "ghettos", and

         25  there are people in the so called "ghettos" who are
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          2  fine people who are hard- working people, who are

          3  people who work every day to make ends meet, and

          4  then there's a thing called "gentrification" coming,

          5  with million dollar homes and fine landmarks.  I

          6  just don't like the way you use the term here, like

          7  it used to be a "ghetto".  Now what is it?  Now it's

          8  a, we have new people and million dollar homes and

          9  now want a landmark.  I don't like that, it had a

         10  certain "tone" to it that I didn't appreciate.  I

         11  have no problems with landmarking that, but I think

         12  the attitude toward that is not a good thing for

         13  this City because there are some people who are

         14  living in low- income areas that have more morals

         15  and principles then those who are living on Park

         16  Avenue.

         17                 So I just think that the attitudinal

         18  thing that I heard in that, I didn't appreciate.  I

         19  just wanted to share that with you.

         20                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  I'm going

         21  to move forward.  I don't want to get into a debate.

         22    I kind of agree with the Council Member.  We're

         23  going to move forward.  Thank you.

         24                 Next panel.  Robert Biviano and Frank

         25  Morris. Growing up in Southeast Queens I kind of
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          2  agree with you with that sentiment, but I don't want

          3  to get into a debate.  I'm supposed to be in

          4  Finance.  I didn't know I was Chairing this meeting.

          5  I have questions to ask.

          6                 MR. BIVIANO:  Good morning Council

          7  Members.  My name is Robert Biviano.  I'm an

          8  architect.  I represent Frank Morris. We are not

          9  opposed to this project.  Frank purchased this

         10  property about a year ago.  We went to the community

         11  and we told them about plans to construct a

         12  condominium.  We have plans here which are ready for

         13  the Buildings Department, but since the building has

         14  been landmarked, these are no longer useful.

         15                 So, at the public hearing at the

         16  Landmarks Preservation Committee, many of the

         17  speakers stated that the building would make a

         18  beautiful bed and breakfast.  We agree with them.

         19  But the way the code is written, the Building Code,

         20  this is a frame building and it's classified as,

         21   "combustible construction, group 2, D & E."  D

         22  means it's a frame building with plaster walls or

         23  sheetrock walls to protect the frame.  E means it's

         24  a frame building with areas which are not protected

         25  at all, and that's the way this building is.
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          2                 However, what the Code states, if we

          3  were just to sprinkler the entire building, the best

          4  that we could develop would be residential J3.

          5  Residential J3 means, one- and two- family houses.

          6  That would not be acceptable to us.  We had plans of

          7  building 25 units, and with this we would only be

          8  able to build perhaps four units, two attached

          9  buildings, splitting the existing buildings into two

         10  and having two families.  That would not be

         11  conducive to what the community wants and what we

         12  want.

         13                 So, we need the help of the Council.

         14  We need the help of the Landmarks Preservation

         15  Commission.  We need the help of the community in

         16  order to get some kind of a variance or some kind of

         17  assistance in order to over- ride the code.

         18  Currently we would like to have the designation

         19  changed as a J1.  J3 is legal.  J2 would be an

         20  apartment house, which is not legal.  J1 currently

         21  is not legal.  But if we can get the help from the

         22  Council to get a variance for this piece of property

         23  to develop it into a J1, which would be a hotel.

         24                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Sir, we

         25  can't do variances.  That's under the purview of the
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          2  Board of Standards of Appeals.

          3                 MR. BIVIANO:  That is correct.

          4                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  So,

          5  you're coming to us, and I'm being told this by my

          6  legal counsel, but I'm also pretty much aware of it

          7  myself, that we can't do variance changes.  While we

          8  might be empathetic to your concern, especially

          9  seeing a young gentlemen that's trying to make an

         10  investment in the property, we just don't have that

         11  purview.  I kind of think you know that, but I guess

         12  you wanted to get that on the record for your

         13  Standards and Appeals testimony when you make that

         14  opportunity.

         15                 MR. BIVIANO.  If we could get your

         16  support.

         17                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  That's

         18  why I kind of let you go there, but we really don't

         19  have the purview to allow that within our

         20  jurisdiction here.  So, I appreciate your testimony

         21  and I hope it's useful to you when you go Standards

         22  and Appeals, but unfortunately we can't allow that

         23  here.  I think that once you go to Standards and

         24  Appeals they can work out something with you that

         25  would give you the maximum opportunity to build
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          2  under the designation rules, and work it from there.

          3    I find it fascinating, but unfortunately we can't

          4  rule on that particular request.

          5                 MR. BIVIANO:  Well could we ask for

          6  your support for something like that, or would that

          7  not be possible?

          8                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  That

          9  would be something that you would probably have to

         10  take up with the Community Board and the local

         11  Council Members to deal with that.  I would suggest

         12  that you strongly advocate to them with Mr. Morris.

         13  You said you purchased the property a year ago, so

         14  you're not the owner that did the restoration of the

         15  property.  Correct?

         16                 MR. MORRIS:  No.

         17                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Okay.

         18  You need to turn on the mike and say that again.

         19                 MR. MORRIS:  No I am not.

         20                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Okay.

         21  Are you a resident of Brooklyn?

         22                 MR. MORRIS:  Yes, sir.

         23                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  And you

         24  own other properties as well?  Can you state your

         25  full name for the record.
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          2                 MR. MORRIS:  My full name is Frank

          3  Morris.

          4                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Okay.  Is

          5  this going to be your primary residence, or this is

          6  for development?

          7                 MR. MORRIS:  Well, it was purchased

          8  for development purposes.

          9                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Okay.

         10                 MR. MORRIS:  For investment.  That's

         11  why we paid $2.4 million for that house.  I'm paying

         12  over $17,000 a month to maintain the payment of the

         13  property and there's no resources in the property

         14  and there is nobody living there.

         15                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Right.

         16  Okay.  Again, it's not under our purview to deal

         17  with the zoning variance changes.  That's not

         18  something that we can do as a Committee or even as a

         19  land use group.  I empathize with your situation,

         20  unfortunately we cannot make any changes in that

         21  particular designation.

         22                 Any Members have questions on this

         23  item or the other items, or any item, or any thing?All

         24  right.  Can we move to vote. Do you want to say

         25  anything else Mr. Morris?  I'm sorry.
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          2                 MR. MORRIS:  Well, you said you can't

          3  give any support.

          4                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  I think

          5  that even if you had done some intercession earlier

          6  in the process there might have been some

          7  accommodations made by the Community Board.  I'm

          8  sorry that you're coming to us at this particular

          9  point in time.  But I think that again you can

         10  probably make some accommodations with Standards and

         11  Appeals with an effective argument.

         12                 With that, I'll move to call the roll

         13  on the vote. So now just to let everybody know we're

         14  voting on Land Use Item 382, the James and Lucy

         15  Elwell House, and Land Use Item 381, the New

         16  Brighton Village Hall, which is a vote to rescind

         17  the designation, and also the school which is

         18  Preconsidered Land Use Item, and in Queens Committee

         19  Board 9 to build a 380- seat early childhood center.

         20

         21                 Before we call the roll I just want

         22  to acknowledge that I appreciate what the SCA is

         23  trying to do to build our early childhood center. I

         24  would hope that they do not go too far into the

         25  ground when they are building the basement if they
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          2  need to reconsider the design, not to go any lower

          3  than 15 feet into the ground.  I think that in long-

          4  term conditions and with the aquifer their at 35

          5  feet, I think it's imperative that they try not to

          6  go any lower, and if site changes need to be made to

          7  preserve that barrier between the aquifer and the

          8  school is very important, because I think that the

          9  other school in Richmond Hill has developed problems

         10  and we don't need that school to be built with all

         11  that money to have to be reconstructed later on down

         12  the line.

         13                 With that I'll call the roll.

         14                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Acting Chairperson

         15  Comrie.

         16                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Aye on

         17  all.

         18                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Council Member

         19  Barron.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Aye on all.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Council Member Palma.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Aye on all.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Council Member

         24  Arroyo.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  I'm hard
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          2  pressed to vote Aye on all, especially on this

          3  school siting.  Out of respect for my colleagues

          4  wishes for the Committee to vote in favor, I will

          5  though request that School Construction Authority

          6  come before this Body better prepared to answer

          7  questions regarding site contamination, plans for

          8  the future monitoring.  It is unacceptable for us

          9  to, on a day of a vote, receive this document and

         10  have questions of great concern for a project that

         11  will stand in the community for decades to come and

         12  not understand what the implication for the future

         13  of the children and the staff that will occupy that

         14  school will be. It hopefully will be the last time

         15  we get an "I don't know" answer and that when there

         16  is environmental issue concerns that there are

         17  appropriate answers for those questions.  I vote

         18  Aye.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Council Member

         20  Mendez.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ:  Permission to

         22  explain my vote?

         23                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  So moved.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ:  I vote Aye on

         25  all matters, but I wanted to express the same
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          2  concerns and echo what the Council Member Maria del

          3  Carmen Arroyo indicated.  I thought some of the

          4  answers to questions weren't satisfactory, and that

          5  we did get this at the last minute.  When we're

          6  talking about environmental issues, particularly

          7  where we're going to site any children to be in any

          8  kind of facility, that this Body needs more

          9  information sooner, rather than later.  Thank you

         10  very much.

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Council Member Oddo.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Mr. Chairman,

         13  reports back in the Council Chambers said you did a

         14  fine job in Chairing the Committee this morning.  It

         15  is as well as I would have done, I vote Yes.

         16                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Thank you

         17  anyway.

         18                 COUNCIL CLERK:  The vote stands at

         19  eight affirmative, none in the negative, no

         20  abstentions.  The items passed to the full Land Use

         21  Committee.

         22                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Before we

         23  close the meeting, I just want to concur with

         24  Council Member Arroyo and ask the SCA to provide to

         25  the Committee all of the unanswered questions that
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          2  were asked today, and that we do take a harder look

          3  at the environmental issues regarding this building

          4  before final construction is begun. I think that I

          5  will convey that to Council Member Gallagher my

          6  concerns and to Community Board 9 as well, and the

          7  concerns of Council Member Arroyo.  I think that she

          8  was right, if there is an environmental issue

          9  regarding any school, that needs to be highlighted

         10  and fully vetted before the Committee.

         11                 With that, I want to thank them for

         12  highlighting these issues.  I thank the Land Use

         13  staff for dropping this on me with a half a second

         14  notice, and call the meeting closed.  Thank you.

         15                 (Hearing concluded at 12:11 p.m.)
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          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, DIANE STURM, do hereby certify

         10  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         11  of the within proceeding.

         12                 I further certify that I am not

         13  related to any of the parties to this action by

         14  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         15  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         16                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         17  set my hand this 6th day of March 2007.
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          3
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          8

          9            I, DIANE STURM, do hereby certify the

         10  aforesaid to be a true and accurate copy of the

         11  transcription of the audio tapes of this hearing.
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